
 
 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 
Monthly Meeting 

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet virtually (see connection info below* and details attached) on 
Tuesday, June 8th, 2021 at 7:00 P.M. 

 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present  
2. Public Comment 
3. Election of Officers 

Action Items:  
• Wetland Conditional Use Permit review for a 12-lot open space subdivision for Scott Carlisle III 

at 19 Watson Road.  Tax Map 33-26 (Scott Carlisle, Barry Gier)  
Non-public Session  

• Non-public session pursuant to RSA 91-A:3, II (d) for the consideration of the acquisition, sale, 
or lease of real or personal property   

Action Items Cont’d: 
• LCHIP Grant Application Update and Request for Matching Funds from two sources: 

a. Expenditure of up to $50,000 from the Conservation Fund as partial matching funds for 
the LCHIP grant application for Raynes Barn improvements at 61 Newfields Road.  

b. Expenditure of up to $1940 from the Conservation Fund for Phase I Archaeological 
Study around the perimeter of the Raynes barn. 

• Committee Reports 
a. Trail Committee:  Discussion of Trail Use (Dave & Kristen) 
b. Tree Committee Update: Draft Ordinance and Appointment of Tree Committee Rep 

• Approval of Minutes: May 11th 2021 Meeting 
• Other Business   
• Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (7/13/21), Submission Deadline (7/2/21) 

 
Andrew Koff 
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted June 4, 2021 Exeter Town Website www.exeternh.gov and Town Office kiosk.  
 
*ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

Virtual Meetings can be watched on Channel 22 and on Exeter TV's Facebook and YouTube pages.  
To participate in public comment, click this link: https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/82243124127 

To participate via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 822 4312 4127 
Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak. 
Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9. 
More instructions for how to participate can be found here: https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-
town-meetings  

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues. 

http://www.exeternh.gov/
http://www.exeternh.gov/
https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/82243124127


TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  June 4th, 2021  
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject:  June 8th Conservation Commission Meeting  
 
1. Election of Officers: 

Proposing the same slate of officers as last year with a replacement for Clerk 
Chair: Drew Koff  
Vice-Chair: Trevor Mattera 
Treasurer: Dave Short 
Clerk:  

 
Suggested Motion: 

____ Move to appoint the slate of officers as presented 
 

2. CUP for open space subdivision 19 Watson Road (Carlisle)  
A joint site walk with the Planning Board is scheduled for Tuesday June 8th at 8:00 AM.  The 
yield plan approval was tabled by the planning board at their last meeting.  They are re-
hearing the application on June 10th.   
 
I have provided motions for the CUP applications, should you feel you have sufficient 
information to make a recommendation to the planning board.   
   
Suggested Motion for Wetland Conditional Use Permit: 

____ We reviewed this application and feel the need to table the application to a date 
certain due to insufficient information on criteria necessary for the Commission to make 
a recommendation to the planning board as noted below:     As agreed to by the 
applicant, the required information will be submitted by the next meeting submission 
deadline of ______ to be heard at the _______ conservation commission meeting date. 
 
____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to the approval of the 
conditional 
use permit as proposed.  
 
____ We have reviewed this application and recommend that the wetland conditional use 
permit be (approved with conditions) (denied) as noted below: 

 
 
3. Non-Public Session:  See non-public session checklist in packet for process and motions.   

 
4. LCHIP Grant Application for Raynes:  We have been working on the LCHIP grant 

application which is due June 11th.  As you are aware, we contracted with S. Bedard to 
prepare an update to our 2018 Historic Structures Report so that we have current list of 
needed repairs as well as updated costs for the grant application.  The update indicated the 
current total project cost would be $241,200.  LCHIP requires a minimum of a 50% match 
with more points awarded if a higher match is provided.  I have included a budget worksheet 
showing the LCHIP grant request of $100k and a proposed plan for match.  Since two of 
these items include conservation fund dollars, I am requesting your consideration and 
hopeful approval of the following expenditures from the conservation fund.  $50k as part of 



our cash match, $1940 for a Phase 1a archeological sensitivity assessment of the area 
adjacent to the barn.   As authorized by RSA 36-a expenditures from the conservation fund 
may occur following a majority vote of the commission.  You can review the conservation 
fund guidebook if you have questions.   
 

Suggested Motions: 
____ To approve the expenditure of up to $50,000 from the Conservation Fund to 
provide as cash match for the LCHIP grant application in support of repairs to Raynes 
Barn. 
 
____ To approve the expenditure of up to $1,940 from the Conservation Fund for a 
Phase 1a archeological sensitivity assessment in the area adjacent to Raynes barn.   

 
5. Committee Reports:  Trails   

Dave and I will provide an update at the meeting but in general concerns have been 
expressed by Fire and Safety as well as trail users that the intensity of trail use has had a 
dramatic increase and there is significant amount of trail braiding and widening.    
 

6. Committee Reports:  Tree 
With the stepping down of Sally, we need a new representative to the Tree Committee.  The 
committee has been working on a draft ordinance and it is included in your packet for your 
early thoughts.  If you have any concerns/comments feel free to share at the meeting or email 
them to me.  We can bring the final draft ordinance back in July.   
 

https://forestsociety.org/sites/default/files/nh-municipal-conservation-fund-guidebook.pdf
https://forestsociety.org/sites/default/files/nh-municipal-conservation-fund-guidebook.pdf


















GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

8 Continental Dr Bldg 2 Unit H, Exeter, NH 03833-7526 

Ph (603) 778 0644 / Fax (603) 778 0654 

www.gesinc.biz 

info@gesinc.biz 

Memorandum 

 

Date: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 

To: Barry Gier, P.E. 

Company: Jones & Beach Engineers, Inc. 

From: Jim Gove 

Re: 19 Watson Road, Exeter, NH 

Subject: Conditional Use Requirements  

 

Attached are evaluations of the 5 wetland buffer impacts.  The evaluations cover the 

functions and values wetlands that are adjacent to the buffer impacts and assesses the 

potential project-related impacts.   

 

It is the finding of the evaluations that the proposed buffer impacts are not detrimental 

to the value and functions of the wetlands or the greater hydrologic system. 

 

The design of the proposed use, to the extent feasible, minimizes the detrimental 

impact on the wetland and on the wetland buffer. 

 

Where appropriate, I have suggested mitigating measures, such at buffer plantings to 

restore the forested buffer that is being impacted. 

 

 

 
1-11-2021 

 

 

 

 

GES 2019104 

 

 

 

 



 

WETLAND FUNCTIONAL ANALYSIS 
 

 

GES PROJECT NO.: 2019104 DATE: 1-11-2021 STAFF: James Gove 

WETLAND ID: Near buffer impact 1  SIZE:  small  PHOTOS: Yes  

DOMINANT CLASSIFICATION: PFO1E NUMBER OF VEGETATIVE CLASSES: 1 

 

WETLAND TYPE 

 Bog 

 Deciduous Wooded Swamp 

 Drainage Swale 

 Evergreen Wooded Swamp 

 Freshwater Deep Marsh 

 Freshwater Shallow Marsh 

 Mixed Wooded Swamp 

 Perennial Stream 

 Pond/Lake 

 Potential Vernal Pool 

 River 

 Salt Marsh 

 Sand Dune 

 Scrub-Shrub Swamp 

 Seasonal Stream 

 Tidal Marsh 

 Wet Meadow 

 

 Excavated Ditch 

 Excavated Wetland 

 Graded Wetland 

 Wetland Detention Basin 

 Wetland w/ Spoil Piles 

 
 

View looking north into wetland. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
View looking east into wetland. 

 

PLANT SPECIES 

Trees 

Red Maples 

 

Saplings 

Red Maples 

 

Shrubs 

Highbush Blueberry 

Winterberry 

 

Herbaceous 

Cinnamon Fern 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Project  2019104 WETLAND BUFFER IMPACT # 1 

 

GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. Wetland Functional Analysis 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE/DISCHARGE Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Restrictive layer 

 Gravel or sands 

 Till 

 Marine/Lacustrine 

 Groundwater discharge:  Seep/Spring 

 Variable water levels 

 Constant water levels 

 

FLOODFLOW ALTERATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 H  M  L Watershed position Slopes in watershed:  

Topo of wetland 

 L  M  S Size relative to watershed 

 Other storage in watershed present 

 Constricted outlet 

 Associated with water course 

 

SEDIMENT/TOXICANT/PATHOGEN RETENTION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Sediment/toxicants sources present upslope 

 Flat wetland topo 

 Organic fine soils 

 Flood storage occurs 

 Broad transition 

 Ditching 

 Associated w/ surface water 

 Erosion or sedimentation 

 Diffuse flows 

 Vegetation interspersion 

 Dense herbaceous

 

NUTRIENT REMOVAL/RETENTION/TRANSFORMATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Hydrologic regime 

 Open water 

 Sediment trapping 

 Nutrients upslope 

 Aquatic diversity abundance 

 Slow moving water 

 Organic soils 

 

PRODUCTION EXPORT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Wildlife food sources 

 Detritus 

 Wildlife use 

 H  M  L Vegetation Density 

 H  M  L Interspersion 

 H  M  L Diversity 

 Aquatic plants 

 Permanent outlet 

 Signs of Export 

 

SEDIMENT/SHORELINE STABILIZATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Association w/ surface water:   Yes   No 

 Topo gradient 

 Bank or shoreline 

 Vegetated bank 

 High flows 

 Channelized flow 

 Open water fetch

 

WILDLIFE HABITAT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Degradation Type:   Adjacent to Watson Road, and runoff from road. 

 Upland buffer Width:   Directly adjacent Watson Road, so buffer is zero. 

Type of buffer:       Other than Watson Road, has a forested buffer.

 Wetland connections 

 Corridor 

 Islands 

 Loafing logs 

 Aquatic habitat 

 Cavity trees 

 Rock crevices 

 Fish habitat 

Vernal pool species identified. 

 

 

 

 



 

Wetland Functional Analysis 

 
 

View of upland between the wetland and the buffer impact 1. 

 

The grading impact for a fill slope is 78 feet away.  The grading impact will not detrimentally affect the 

ground water recharge/discharge function, as it will not significantly impact the uplands directly adjacent the 

wetland. Similarly sediment and nutrient retention will not be impacted, again because the slopes adjacent the 

wetland are not being graded or filled, and there is no additional water being directed into the wetland.  

Wildlife habitat potentially could be impacted, though not significantly, as the grading impact is at a 

significant distant away and limited to just the east of the wetland, with the remaining areas around the 

wetland not being proposed for grading or filling.   

 

Mitigating measures to further reduce the impact to wildlife would be additional plantings between the buffer 

impact and the wetland, and tree/shrub plantings of the fill slope in the buffer.  As can be seen in the photo 

above, a woods road and cleared area exists is the existing condition of the buffer area.  Tree and shrub 

plantings in the area would enhance the buffer, and help protect the wildlife use of the wetland.  

 

In conclusion, I believe buffer impact #1 is not detrimental to the value and function of the wetland and 

proposed use will, to the extent feasible, minimize the impact on the wetland buffer. 



 

WETLAND FUNCTIONAL ANALYSIS 
 

 

GES PROJECT NO.: 2019104 DATE: 1-11-2021 STAFF: James Gove 

WETLAND ID: Near buffer impact 2  SIZE:  small  PHOTOS: Yes  

DOMINANT CLASSIFICATION: PSS1E NUMBER OF VEGETATIVE CLASSES: 1 

 

WETLAND TYPE 

 Bog 

 Deciduous Wooded Swamp 

 Drainage Swale 

 Evergreen Wooded Swamp 

 Freshwater Deep Marsh 

 Freshwater Shallow Marsh 

 Mixed Wooded Swamp 

 Perennial Stream 

 Pond/Lake 

 Potential Vernal Pool 

 River 

 Salt Marsh 

 Sand Dune 

 Scrub-Shrub Swamp 

 Seasonal Stream 

 Tidal Marsh 

 Wet Meadow 

 

 Excavated Ditch 

 Excavated Wetland 

 Graded Wetland 

 Wetland Detention Basin 

 Wetland w/ Spoil Piles 

 
 

View looking north into wetland. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
View looking east into wetland. 

 

PLANT SPECIES 

Trees 

Red Maples 

(at the edges) 

 

Saplings 

Red Maples 

 

Shrubs 

Highbush Blueberry 

Winterberry 

 

Herbaceous 

Cinnamon Fern 

Poison Ivy 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Project  2019104 WETLAND BUFFER IMPACT # 2 

 

GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. Wetland Functional Analysis 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE/DISCHARGE Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Restrictive layer 

 Gravel or sands 

 Till 

 Marine/Lacustrine 

 Groundwater discharge:  Seep/Spring 

 Variable water levels 

 Constant water levels 

 

FLOODFLOW ALTERATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 H  M  L Watershed position Slopes in watershed: 

Topo of wetland 

 L  M  S Size relative to watershed 

 Other storage in watershed present 

 Constricted outlet 

 Associated with water course 

 

SEDIMENT/TOXICANT/PATHOGEN RETENTION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Sediment/toxicants sources present upslope 

 Flat wetland topo 

 Organic fine soils 

 Flood storage occurs 

 Broad transition 

 Ditching 

 Associated w/ surface water 

 Erosion or sedimentation 

 Diffuse flows 

 Vegetation interspersion 

 Dense herbaceous

 

NUTRIENT REMOVAL/RETENTION/TRANSFORMATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Hydrologic regime 

 Open water 

 Sediment trapping 

 Nutrients upslope 

 Aquatic diversity abundance 

 Slow moving water 

 Organic soils 

 

PRODUCTION EXPORT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Wildlife food sources 

 Detritus 

 Wildlife use 

 H  M  L Vegetation Density 

 H  M  L Interspersion 

 H  M  L Diversity 

 Aquatic plants 

 Permanent outlet 

 Signs of Export 

 

SEDIMENT/SHORELINE STABILIZATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Association w/ surface water:   Yes   No 

 Topo gradient 

 Bank or shoreline 

 Vegetated bank 

 High flows 

 Channelized flow 

 Open water fetch

 

WILDLIFE HABITAT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Degradation Type:   

 Upland buffer Width:   All Exeter buffer present. 

  Type of buffer:       A forested buffer.

 Wetland connections 

 Corridor 

 Islands 

 Loafing logs 

 Aquatic habitat 

 Cavity trees 

 Rock crevices 

 Fish habitat 

Vernal pool species identified. 

 

 

 

 



 

Wetland Functional Analysis 

 

 

The soil disturbance buffer impact for a cut slope is 81 feet away.  This is a small wetland with vernal pool 

activity.  Its primary functions are wildlife habitat (for vernal pool species) and production export (the vernal 

pool species are a food source for other species that will visit the pool in the spring time).  Otherwise, this 

wetland is too small to have flood storage or sediment and nutrient trapping. 

 

 

Mitigating measures to further reduce the impact to wildlife would be just maintaining the forested buffer.  

The cut face begins on the opposite side of the fill from the wetland, so additional plantings would not be 

needed in the remaining buffer.   

 

 

In conclusion, I believe buffer impact #2 is not detrimental to the value and function of the wetland and 

proposed use will, to the extent feasible, minimize the impact on the wetland buffer. 



 

WETLAND FUNCTIONAL ANALYSIS 
 

 

GES PROJECT NO.: 2019104 DATE: 1-11-2021 STAFF: James Gove 

WETLAND ID: Near buffer impacts 3&5  SIZE:  large  PHOTOS: Yes  

DOMINANT CLASSIFICATION: PFO/SS/EM NUMBER OF VEGETATIVE CLASSES: 1 

 

WETLAND TYPE 

 Bog 

 Deciduous Wooded Swamp 

 Drainage Swale 

 Evergreen Wooded Swamp 

 Freshwater Deep Marsh 

 Freshwater Shallow Marsh 

 Mixed Wooded Swamp 

 Perennial Stream 

 Pond/Lake 

 Potential Vernal Pool 

 River 

 Salt Marsh 

 Sand Dune 

 Scrub-Shrub Swamp 

 Seasonal Stream 

 Tidal Marsh 

 Wet Meadow 

 

 Excavated Ditch 

 Excavated Wetland 

 Graded Wetland 

 Wetland Detention Basin 

 Wetland w/ Spoil Piles 

 
 

View looking west into wetland with Watson Road in the background. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
View looking west into wetland with Watson Road beyond the wetland. 

 

 



 

 
Looking south into larger portion of the wetland with Watson Road in background. 

 

PLANT SPECIES 

Trees 

Red Maples 

Gray Birch 

 

Saplings 

Red Maples 

Gray Birch 

 

Shrubs 

Highbush Blueberry 

Winterberry 

Bittersweet (vine) 

 

Herbaceous 

Cinnamon Fern 

Cattails 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Project  2019104 WETLAND BUFFER IMPACTS #3/5 

 

GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. Wetland Functional Analysis 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE/DISCHARGE Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Restrictive layer 

 Gravel or sands 

 Till 

 Marine/Lacustrine 

 Groundwater discharge:  Seep/Spring 

 Variable water levels 

 Constant water levels 

 

FLOODFLOW ALTERATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 H  M  L Watershed position  

Topo of wetland   Flat slopes. 

 L  M  S Size relative to watershed 

 Other storage in watershed present 

 Constricted outlet 

 Associated with water course 

 

SEDIMENT/TOXICANT/PATHOGEN RETENTION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Sediment/toxicants sources present upslope 

 Flat wetland topo 

 Organic fine soils 

 Flood storage occurs 

 Broad transition 

 Ditching 

 Associated w/ surface water 

 Erosion or sedimentation 

 Diffuse flows 

 Vegetation interspersion 

 Dense herbaceous

 

NUTRIENT REMOVAL/RETENTION/TRANSFORMATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Hydrologic regime 

 Open water 

 Sediment trapping 

 Nutrients upslope 

 Aquatic diversity abundance 

 Slow moving water 

 Organic soils 

 

PRODUCTION EXPORT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Wildlife food sources 

 Detritus 

 Wildlife use 

 H  M  L Vegetation Density 

 H  M  L Interspersion 

 H  M  L Diversity 

 Aquatic plants 

 Permanent outlet 

 Signs of Export 

 

SEDIMENT/SHORELINE STABILIZATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Association w/ surface water:   Yes   No 

 Topo gradient 

 Bank or shoreline 

 Vegetated bank 

 High flows 

 Channelized flow 

 Open water fetch

 

WILDLIFE HABITAT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Degradation Type:   Adjacent to Watson Road, and runoff from road. 

 Upland buffer Width:   Directly adjacent Watson Road, so buffer is zero.  Also directly adjacent Rte 

101. 

Type of buffer:       Other than Watson Road and Rte 101, has a forested buffer.

 Wetland connections 

 Corridor 

 Islands 

 Loafing logs 

 Aquatic habitat 

 Cavity trees 

 Rock crevices 

 Fish habitat 

Vernal pool species identified. 

 

 

 



 

Wetland Functional Analysis 

 

 
 

View of Watson Road proximity to the wetland. 

 

The grading impact for a fill slope is 40 feet away.   This is a large wetland that exhibits all of the wetland 

functions.  However, the buffer impact is located adjacent a wetland finger of this larger wetland, that has 

already been impacted by runoff from Watson Road.   The grading impact will not detrimentally affect the 

ground water recharge/discharge function, as this is a large wetland and the grading is minimally to the edges 

of the overall complex.  Similarly sediment and nutrient retention will not be impacted, again because this is a 

large wetland, and the buffer impacts are to a wetland finger that already receives sediment and nutrients from 

Watson Road, and there is no additional water being directed into the wetland.  Wildlife habitat potentially 

could be impacted, though not significantly, as the buffer impact is at a significant distant away from the main 

wetland area, and limited to just the wetland finger, with the remaining areas around the wetland not being 

proposed for grading or filling.   

 

There are no mitigating measures here with the exception of maintaining the forested buffer to the larger 

wetland area.  As can be seen in the photo above, Watson Road runs along a large portion of this wetland and 

does contribute sediment and nutrients to the wetland. 

 

In conclusion, I believe buffer impacts # 3/5 are not detrimental to the value and function of the wetland and 

proposed use will, to the extent feasible, minimize the impact on the wetland buffer. 



 

WETLAND FUNCTIONAL ANALYSIS 
 

 

GES PROJECT NO.: 2019104 DATE: 1-11-2021 STAFF: James Gove 

WETLAND ID: Near buffer impact 4  SIZE:  small  PHOTOS: Yes  

DOMINANT CLASSIFICATION: PEMx NUMBER OF VEGETATIVE CLASSES: 1 

 

WETLAND TYPE 

 Bog 

 Deciduous Wooded Swamp 

 Drainage Swale 

 Evergreen Wooded Swamp 

 Freshwater Deep Marsh 

 Freshwater Shallow Marsh 

 Mixed Wooded Swamp 

 Perennial Stream 

 Pond/Lake 

 Potential Vernal Pool 

 River 

 Salt Marsh 

 Sand Dune 

 Scrub-Shrub Swamp 

 Seasonal Stream 

 Tidal Marsh 

 Wet Meadow 

 

 Excavated Ditch 

 Excavated Wetland 

 Graded Wetland 

 Wetland Detention Basin 

 Wetland w/ Spoil Piles 

 
 

View looking south into wetland. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
View looking west into wetland. 

 

PLANT SPECIES 

Trees 

 

 

Saplings 

 

 

Shrubs 

Highbush Blueberry 

Winterberry 

(on the edges) 

 

Herbaceous 

Cinnamon Fern 

Poison Ivy 

Raspberry 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Project  2019104 WETLAND BUFFER IMPACT # 4 

 

GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. Wetland Functional Analysis 

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE/DISCHARGE Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Restrictive layer 

 Gravel or sands 

 Till 

 Marine/Lacustrine 

 Groundwater discharge:  Seep/Spring 

 Variable water levels 

 Constant water levels 

 

FLOODFLOW ALTERATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 H  M  L Watershed position Slopes in watershed: 

Topo of wetland 

 L  M  S Size relative to watershed 

 Other storage in watershed present 

 Constricted outlet 

 Associated with water course 

 

SEDIMENT/TOXICANT/PATHOGEN RETENTION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Sediment/toxicants sources present upslope 

 Flat wetland topo 

 Organic fine soils 

 Flood storage occurs 

 Broad transition 

 Ditching 

 Associated w/ surface water 

 Erosion or sedimentation 

 Diffuse flows 

 Vegetation interspersion 

 Dense herbaceous

 

NUTRIENT REMOVAL/RETENTION/TRANSFORMATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Hydrologic regime 

 Open water 

 Sediment trapping 

 Nutrients upslope 

 Aquatic diversity abundance 

 Slow moving water 

 Organic soils 

 

PRODUCTION EXPORT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Wildlife food sources 

 Detritus 

 Wildlife use 

 H  M  L Vegetation Density 

 H  M  L Interspersion 

 H  M  L Diversity 

 Aquatic plants 

 Permanent outlet 

 Signs of Export 

 

SEDIMENT/SHORELINE STABILIZATION  Function Present:   Yes   No 

Association w/ surface water:   Yes   No 

 Topo gradient 

 Bank or shoreline 

 Vegetated bank 

 High flows 

 Channelized flow 

 Open water fetch

 

WILDLIFE HABITAT  Function Present:   Yes   No 

 Degradation Type:   Excavated wetland, with wood debris dumped. 

 Upland buffer Width:   Exeter buffer intact. 

Type of buffer:       A forested buffer.

 Wetland connections 

 Corridor 

 Islands 

 Loafing logs 

 Aquatic habitat 

 Cavity trees 

 Rock crevices 

 Fish habitat 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Wetland Functional Analysis 

 

 

Buffer impact # 4 is 46 feet away from an excavated wetland area that has received woody spoils from 

logging activities.  This wetland has virtually no functions or values.  Therefore, any impact to the buffer of 

this wetland will have no impact to its functional value. 

 

In conclusion, I believe buffer impact #4 is not detrimental to the value and function of the wetland and 

proposed use will, to the extent feasible, minimize the impact on the wetland buffer. 















































Non-Public Session Checklist 

� Motion to enter non-public session pursuant to RSA 91-A: 3, II(c) made by______________ 
� Motion is seconded by ___________ 
� Roll Call Vote to enter non-public session is taken (need to answer YES or NO): 

 

� Enter Non-Public Session, confirm cameras off 

� Note Time for minutes: _______ 

� Discussion of issue, decisions made:_____________________ 

� Agree to seal the minutes, roll call vote (need to answer YES or NO) 

� Motion to leave nonpublic session and return to public session made by___________, seconded 

by __________ 

� Note Time for minutes:________ 

 

  

� Return to Public Session: 

� Motion made to seal the minutes in accordance with RSA 91-A:3 III, because divulgence of this 

information will likely render the proposed action ineffective:  made by ______. 

� Motion to seal seconded by _______ 

� Roll Call Vote to seal minutes 

� Public Session Reconvened  



 10 Points 

Cash  Non-Cash Total 
     (donated value) 

Eligible Expenses Cash      Non-Cash Total 
 (donated value) 

Expended?

 (If yes, give date.) 

Project Name  

Income Sources 

City/Town

Historic Resource Project Budget

 Secured or Expected
(give date)

Expended?

Cash  Non-Cash Total 
 (donated value) 

Expended?

Expended?

 (If yes, give date.) 

Total Expenses 

Ineligible Project Expenses 

← Total Project Cost

Total Income 
(must equal or exceed TPC*)

*TPC = Total Project Cost



Independent Archaeological Consulting, LLC
34 Dover Point Road, Suite 300
Dover, New Hampshire  03820

Phase IA Archaeological Sensitivity Assessment
Wiggins Barn

Exeter, New Hampshire

June 2, 2021

# 
Hours

Hourly 
Rate Total Cost

Project Management Principal Investigator 1 $95.00 95.00$          
Phase IA Walkover Project Archaeologist 4 $75.00 300.00$        
Phase IA Walkover Archaeological Technician 4 $55.00 220.00$        
Analysis & Assessment Project Archaeologist 2 $75.00 150.00$        
Labwork Archaeological Technician 2 $55.00 110.00$        
Report Preparation Principal Investigator 2 $95.00 190.00$        
Report Preparation Project Archaeologist 8 $75.00 600.00$        
Report Preparation Archaeological Technician 4 $55.00 220.00$        
Miscellaneous Supplies, postage, photocopies 50.00$          

Total for Phase IA Archaeological Sensitivity Assessment 1,935.00$     

The Phase IA scope consists of an New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources site file review, 
as well as review of secondary historic sources, maps, and photographs of
the project area.  We also conduct a site inspection to look for landforms suitable for 
Pre-Contact habitation or hunting/gathering sites and Post-Contact features (e.g., cellarholes) 
As part of the inspection, archaeologists excavate small test pits to assess the integrity of 
deposits.  Our final report offers an assessment of whether archaeological resources are
known or expected to be present within the project area, and whether a Phase IB
intensive archaeological investigation is recommended.

Objective:  Evaluate archaeological sensitivity of project area



Archaeological Review Process Summary 

RPR Preparation, Phase IA Sensitivity Assessment and  

Phase IB Intensive Archaeological Investigation 

 

The first step in the review process is the submission of a Request for Project Review form (RPR) to the 

New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources (NHDHR).  NHDHR will review the project location and 

impacts and offer recommendations for archaeological survey should they identify the project area as 

having a potential for Pre-Contact Native American and/or Post-Contact Euroamerican archaeological 

resources.   

 

A Phase IA Archaeological Sensitivity Assessment forms the first step in the archaeological survey process, 

combining the tasks of background research, fieldwork, and report preparation.  Background research 

includes a review of archaeological site files as inventoried in the NHDHR online database EMMIT; 

desktop analysis of soils, topography and proximal natural resources; and a review of local maps and 

historic collections at local libraries and historical societies.  The Phase IA fieldwork consists of a site 

inspection to identify landforms suitable for Native American activity and/or occupation sites and 

simultaneously search for Euroamerican features.  If appropriate, IAC will hand-excavate soil tests to begin 

to assess archaeological integrity. The Phase IA assessment will establish whether Native American or 

Euroamerican archaeological resources are expected in the project area and will offer recommendations 

about whether further archaeological survey is warranted.   

 

Should IAC identify portions of the project footprint as having a potential for Pre-Contact and/or Post-

Contact archaeological resources, we will recommend a Phase IB Intensive Archaeological Investigation 

to confirm whether archaeological resources are present that could be affected by the project impacts.  The 

Phase IB testing would include the hand-excavation of 0.5-m-x-0.5-m (1.8-ft-x-1.8-ft) shovel test pits 

(STPs) to look for evidence of Native American or Euroamerican occupation.  STPs will be arranged at 8-

m (26-ft) intervals along linear transects placed at the most likely locations for archaeological deposits.  

Should testing confirm the presence of archaeological resources, we will offer appropriate 

recommendations for further study and work closely with the design team to find an appropriate solution 

that not only protects the site but also allows the project to move forward.  Should the Phase IB effort yield 

no evidence of archaeological resources, we will recommend no further archaeological survey.   

 

The results of the Phase IA and Phase IB efforts will be reported to NHDHR in accordance with the 

NHDHR Guidelines for Historic/Architectural/Engineering Resources: Phase 1- Revised July 2005. The 

Phase IA and Phase IB work is authorized under Section 106 of the Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (P.L. 

89-665), as amended, and as implemented by regulations of the Advisory Council of Historic Preservation 

(36CFR Part 800), coordinated at the state level by the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO).   

 



1 
 

 
 
 
CHAPTER X TREE ORDINANCE 

 

 
XXX PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Chapter is to encourage the proper management of 
community trees within the Town of Exeter; and to establish a standard of 
care and provide clear guidance to Town officials, public utilities, arborists, 
and residents regarding the planning, planting, preservation, maintenance, 
care, and removal of trees on public parks and public rights-of-way within 
the Town of Exeter; and to establish and assign proper authority regarding 
care of community trees on these lands within the Town of Exeter. 

 
XXX JURISDICTION 

Areas subject to the Ordinance:  All streets, highways, parks, cemeteries, or 
other grounds owned by the Town.  This includes public easements along all 
public roads to the property line.  The Conservation Commission has its own 
procedures for dealing with trees on conservation land, therefore this Ordinance 
does not apply to Conservation easements.   
 
Activities subject to the Ordinance:  Planning, planting, preservation, 
maintenance, care, and removal of trees on public parks and public rights-of-way 
within the Town of Exeter 
 

XXX DEFINITIONS 
 As used in this Chapter, the following terms are defined as follows: 
 
 Diameter at Breast Height (DBH) 
 The measurement of a tree’s trunk diameter in inches at breast height 4 ½ feet  
 above ground level at the tree’s base. For trees with les than 4 ½ feet of clear 
 trunk, the diameter shall be of the largest leader measured 4 ½ feet above  
 ground level.  For multi-trunk trees, it shall be the sum of the diameter of the 
 individual trunks measured 4 ½ feet above ground level. 
 

 Hazard Tree 
A tree or tree part that has defects or structural weaknesses that poses a high 
risk upon its failure to cause personal injury or death, or damage to property; 
public or private.  A tree becomes a potential hazard when its woody structure is 
weakened by one or more defects, which decreases its structural integrity and 
increases its potential for failure.  Defects are visible signs that a tree has failed, 
is failing, or has the potential to fail.  There are seven main categories of 
defects: 

1. Cracks, 
2. Weak branch unions, 
3. Stem or branch decay, 
4. Cankers, 



2 
 

5. Dead trees, tops or branches, 
6. Root problems and, 
7. Poor tree architecture. 

 
 
 
 
As defined by the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA), a hazard tree must 
meet three (3) criteria: 
(1) The tree is sufficiently large enough to cause damage should it fall; 
(2) The tree has a target that would be damaged should it fall; 
(3) The tree has a condition that would make it likely to fall. 
 
              By definition, a hazard tree = a defective tree plus a target 
 
 

            Invasive Species 
      An alien or an introduced organism that causes ecological harm, or is likely to  
      cause harm in a new environment where it is not native. Invasive species can  
    lead to extinction of native plants or animals, destroy biodiversity and  

  permanently alter habitats. The NH Department of Agriculture maintains the list      
of NH Invasive Species in accordance with the State Invasive Species Act.   

 
            Park 
 An area of land, usually in a largely natural state, owned and managed by the 
 Town and set aside for environmental protection and/or recreation. 

  A list of parks can be found here. 
 

 Property Owner 
 A person or business entity with a legal or equitable interest in a property. 
 (As shown by the Town’s Assessor’s list.) 
 

 Pruning 
 A horticultural practice of selectively cutting/removing specific portions of a  

tree (such as roots, buds, branches) that are dead, undesirable or overgrown OR 
trimming for healthy plant development and aesthetic purposes.  Pruning can  
be considered preventive maintenance. 
 

 Public Places 
 Includes all streets, highways, parks, cemeteries, easements or other grounds 

  owned by the Town.  This includes public easements along all public roads to  
  the property line.  Property owners should ascertain the public easement along 
  their property line before any tree work, including pruning, removal, or 
  planting occurs.  Questions can be addressed to the Tree Warden or the Code  
  Enforcement Officer of the Town. 

  

https://www.exeternh.gov/recreation/parks


3 
 

 Public Trees and Street Trees 
 Public Trees refers to trees, shrubs and other woody vegetation within the public 
 right-of-way and on any public property.  This includes shade, ornamental and  
 forest trees or shrubs growing on any street, park, cemetery, or public place.  

 Street Trees refers to trees and other woody vegetation growing on public streets 
and on land lying within the public rights-of-way. 
 
Replacement Trees 
A tree or trees to be planted to replace any trees removed (or an equivalent 
replacement value that shall be paid to the Town’s tree fund).   

Equivalent Replacement:  The replacement of a removed or damaged 
tree to compensate for that tree’s removal, or its damage, with one tree the 
same diameter, or a combination of smaller trees that will equal that 
removed tree’s DBH as defined herein.   
Tree-for-Tree Replacement:  Replacing a removed tree with a tree, or 
trees, with a minimum of three inches in cumulative trunk diameter at 
breast height (DBH).  The replacement trees will be nursery grown, native 
trees.  The Tree Warden and the Tree Committee will develop and maintain 
within the regulations an up-to-date list of approved trees for planting under 
appropriate circumstances.   
 

 Significant Trees 
 Significant trees, as defined in Exeter’s Site and Subdivision regulations   
           (7.4.7), are 20-inches or greater in diameter at breast height (DBH). 

 
          Tree Maintenance 

Activities, equipment, plans and provisions to keep trees alive and flourishing. 
 

 
XXX TREE WARDEN 

The Exeter Tree Warden is an appointed official with relevant training and/or 
experience, who is the contact person for questions about public trees, and for 
permission to prune and/or remove trees in public places.  The Tree Warden 
works with and is supported by the Exeter Tree Committee. 

 
The Tree Warden’s job may include, but is not limited to the oversight of the 
following: 

 
• Pruning of trees for health and safety; 
• Removal of trees that are dead or dying as a result of storms, insects, 

disease or old age; 
• Identification of sites for planting new trees; 
• Planting new trees; 
• Maintaining an inventory of public trees; 
• Supervising Town tree workers; 
• Inspecting contracted tree work; 
• Utility arboricultural operations; 



4 
 

• Assessment of trees for potential hazards to public safety; 
• The Site Review Technical Advisory Committee may request that the 

Tree Warden or his/her designee provide advice on tree removal, tree 
selection, and placement of trees on projects that come before the 
Planning Board. 

 
 Questions about Public Trees are addressed to the Tree Warden. 
 
 
XXX TREE COMMITTEE  

 The Exeter Tree Committee was created in 2019 as part of the Town of 
Exeter’s efforts to be officially recognized as a Tree City.  The Committee is a 
subcommittee of the Conservation Commission, and is made up of volunteers 
who will: 

 
• Coordinate efforts in support of Exeter’s Tree City USA designation; 
• Aid in carrying out the provisions of this ordinance; 
• Collaborate with the Tree Warden, Town departments, and other Town 

officials to foster a tree-rich community; 
• Help monitor the health and protection of public trees; 
• Work to update our inventory of public trees; 
• Seek grants and secure funds to further and support the work of the 

committee; 
• Advance educational efforts to promote awareness and knowledge of 

the benefits of trees. 
 
More information on the Tree Committee can be found here.   

 
XXX PERMITS / PERMISSION REQUIRED 

Permission must be obtained from the Tree Warden prior to doing any of the 
following work:   

• Removal of public trees; 
• Trimming of public trees;  
• Site preparation, alteration or excavation within the public right-of-way 

or public property which may disturb the roots, trunks, or limbs of public 
trees.  This can include but is not limited to the installation of utilities.    

• Planting, fertilizing, cutting or otherwise disturbing any public trees 
 

No person shall apply pesticides or herbicides within the Town’s ROW without 
first procuring written permission from the Tree Warden or his/her designee. 
 
Any person engaging in the business of cutting, planting, pruning, removing, 
spraying or otherwise treating trees on Public Property must first produce 
evidence of certification/license to the Tree Warden or his/her designee. 

 
XXX TREE PLANTING, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL  

https://www.arborday.org/programs/treecityusa/


5 
 

 All planting, replacing, maintaining and other work done on public trees shall 
comply with the tree regulations regardless of whether such work involves private 
individuals, businesses, public utility companies, contractors, town officials or 
employers.   

 
 The Tree Warden shall have the authority, and it shall be the duty of the Tree 

Warden, to order the trimming, spraying, preservation, or removal of trees upon 
property owned by or controlled by the Town, or in any Town right-of-way.  

 
 The Tree Warden, subject to the approval of the Tree Committee, shall take 

such action necessary to order the removal of street trees and trees in public 
places wherever necessary to preserve public safety or to prevent the spread 
of disease or insects to public trees and places. The approval of the Tree 
Committee is not necessary in emergency situations when public safety, health 
and welfare, is at risk. 

 
 No significant street tree or tree in a public place (having a diameter larger than 

two inches as measured, four feet above the ground), shall be removed without 
approval of the Tree Committee, and after public input, except where delay in 
the removal of the tree would pose an imminent threat to public safety or 
property. 

 
         The planting of street trees (by the abutting property owner) within the public 

right-of-way is permissible and encouraged provided that the Tree Warden 
approves the location and selection of such trees.  The selected tree or trees 
will be planted by the Tree Warden, and it will be the responsibility of the 
abutting property owner to water and provide care for the tree(s). 

           
 
XXX  INJURIES TO TREES 

           No person shall, willfully or mischievously, break down, injure, climb upon, or 
           commit any injury to public trees, nor shall they interfere with the roots, place 
           signs or posters or any other fixture on a tree using nails or other devices  
           which may damage the tree.   
 
XXX REPLACEMENT TREES 

• The Tree Warden shall approve the replacement tree, or trees, and the 
place where it is (they are) planted.   

• When a public tree has been damaged or destroyed, the responsible 
party shall be responsible for removal, replacement and maintenance 
costs.   

• The Tree Warden, in consultation with the Tree Committee, will 
determine the tree value and replacement costs.   

• The responsible party shall bear the costs of removal and disposal of 
the removed tree, the grinding of the stump, and any resulting sidewalk 
and or landscape repairs.  



6 
 

• There shall be a 5-year maintenance plan and guarantee.  
 
 
 
XXX PENALTIES 
           Anyone who violates any provision of this ordinance, upon being found guilty of  
           violation, shall be subject to a fine not to exceed ($300) for each separate 
           offense.  If the injury, mutilation, or death of any tree(s) in public parks and  
           public rights-of-way within the Town of Exeter is caused, the cost of repair 
           or replacement, or the appraised dollar value of such tree(s) shall be borne 
           by the party in violation. 
 
 
XXX ENFORCEMENT 
          The Town Warden or his/her designee, in consultation with the Tree 
          Committee, shall have the power to promulgate and enforce regulations, rules  
          and specifications concerning the spraying, trimming, removal, planting and  
          protection of trees upon the right-of-way of any street, sidewalk, or other  
          public place in the Town of Exeter. 
 
 
XXX PRIVATE TREES 
            If the Tree Warden determines that a tree on private property is a public 
            hazard and needs to be trimmed or removed, the Tree Warden will send a 
            certified letter to the landowner to make him/her aware of the problem. 
            A hazard tree on public property could have any of the following issues:   

1. An infectious disease or insect problem; 
2. Be dead or dying; 
3. Have limbs that obstruct street lights or traffic signs; 
4. Prevent the free passage of pedestrians or vehicles; 
5. Constitute a hazard to life or safety of people, buildings, or other public 

property. 
   

 
XXX STANDARDS FOR PROPER PLANTING  
 
XXX  NATIVE TREES AND SHRUBS 
 

See Exhibit A-Notes on Approved Trees and Shrubs; Recommended Native 
Trees 
See Exhibit B-Notes on Native Trees and Shrubs; Invasive Trees and Plants to 
be avoided. 

 
 
 
 



7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
XXX  FUNDING 
 It is the goal of the Tree Committee to work with the Town to establish a  
 fund that will support the activities of the Committee.   
 
 This would cover for activities and purchases including: 
  

• Tree work such as labeling public trees in Town; 
• The expense of a Town arborist; 
• The purchase, planting, and maintenance of new trees in public places; 
• The purchase of equipment for emergency and tree maintenance work 

to be done in-house. 
 
 
 
  
 
Version:  May 24, 2021 
 
 
NOTES: 
 

1. Details on XXX PENALTIES still need to be worked out.  (To whom would the 
fine/s be paid.  Where would the fines be held. Etc.) 

2. Is the $300 ‘not to exceed’ amount in the XXX PENALTIES chapter too much, 
or not enough? 

3. Under XXX ENFORCEMENT, should anyone, in addition to the Tree Warden 
and his/her designee, be able to enforce this regulation? 

4. In the TREE COMMITTEE section, are we ready to add a section on ‘Memorial 
Trees’?  This was discussed at the last meeting, and the thinking was that the 
Parks and Recreation Department would make arrangements to put this fund in 
place.  



1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission 
May 11, 2021 

Virtual Meeting 
Draft Minutes 

 
Call to Order 

 
1.  Introduction of Members Present (by Roll Call)  
 
Present at tonight’s meeting were by roll call, Chair Andrew Koff, Vice-Chair Trevor Mattera, Bill 
Campbell, Carlos Guindon, Donald Clement, (Alternate), Kristen Osterwood (Alternate), Conor Madison 
(Alternate) and Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner. 
 
Members present indicated there was no one else present in the room with them during this meeting. 
 
Absent:  Allison Eberhardt, Dave Short, Julie Gilman Select Board Liaison, Ginny Raub, (Alternate) and 
Nick Campion (Alternate) 
 
Mr. Koff read the meeting preamble indicated that an emergency exists and the provisions of RSA 91-
A:2 III (b) are being invoked.  As federal, state and local officials have determined gatherings of ten or 
more people pose a substantial risk to the community and the meeting imperative to the continued 
operation of Town and government and services which are vital to public, health, safety and confidence.  
This meeting will be conducted without a quorum physically present in the same location and welcome 
members of the public accessing the meeting remotely. 
 
Mr. Koff called the meeting to order at 7 PM and indicated Alternates Donald Clement and Conor 
Madison would be active and voting for this meeting. 
 
2.  Public Comment (7:00 PM) 
 
Mr. Koff asked if there were any members of the public who wanted to speak to an item not on the 
agenda and being none closed public comment. 
 
Action Items 
 
1.  Continuation of the Wetland/Shoreland CUP review for an open space development at Cullen 
Way/Tamarind Lane.  Tax Map 96-15 and 96-9 (Brian Griset, Justin Pasay, Christian Smith, Jim Gove, 
Luke Hurley) 
 
Mr. Campbell commented that he and Mr. Mattera had been on a site walk of the premises. 
 
A wetlands delineation error was disclosed of the prime wetlands boundary along the railroad corridor 
and discussed.  It was determined the boundary did not affect the areas impacted by the CUP as it is not 



2 
 

in the developed portion of the site.  Ms. Murphy noted if there were a material change to the Planning 
Board analysis it would come back to the Commission.  Mr. Koff clarified if it materially affected the CUP 
application. 
 
Mr. Koff opened the hearing to the public for comments and questions at 7:12 PM. 
 
Nail Bleicken of 11 Tamarind Lane expressed concerns about the maps being incorrect and requested 
the Commission get an independent analysis. 
 
Mr. Koff reported receipt of two similar letters from abutters asking for independent review of the 
wetland delineation. 
 
Mr. Pasay stated he did not believe the Commission has the authority to order this for the Planning 
Board but noted he believed Mr. Sharples is trying to get some names together.  Mr. Pasay clarified that 
realtor Scott Gove has no relation to wetlands scientist Jim Gove.  Ms. Murphy corrected that the 
Commission does have the authority to request an independent wetland review.  Ms. Murphy indicated 
that Mr. Sharples is looking at the availability of wetland scientists but the Planning Board has not 
requested a review. 
 
Conor Madison joined the meeting at 7:17 PM. 
 
Laura Knott of 15 Tamarind Lane requested an independent wetland review. 
 
David Hadden of 12 Tamarind Lane felt the information should be answered before moving forward and 
expressed concerns about the loss of field for the animals. 
 
Mr. Koff noted the Commission has a complete application and obligation to deliberate.  Other than 
general uneasiness there has been no specific issuance of challenge.  The easement area will be 
discussed at a later date.  Ms. Murphy noted the Planning Board approved the Yield Plan in February. 
 
Mr. Koff reviewed the criteria for the CUP.  
 
Criteria #1 concerns permitted zoning.  The premises are single-family, residential condominium open 
space units.  The applicant received a variance from the ZBA for density on January 21, 2020. 
 
Criteria #2 concerns alternative design.  Mr. Pasay noted the 64 acres on 3 parcels with 18 units in an 
open space upland development.  A conventional subdivision would have been 12,000 SF of impact so 
the applicant pursued the open space design.  50 acres will be preserved.  The existing ROW was 
utilized.  Soils were previously disturbed.  There is no legitimate alternative design. 
 
Criteria #3 concerns functions and values.  Mr. Gove discussed the impacts on the edge and man made 
pond which is not a vernal pool, has fish, minnows and sunfish, and will continue to exist.  The forested 
rea has a road bed expansion in an already impacted area.  There are no loss to functions or values. 
 



3 
 

Ms. Oster…. asked Mr. Gove about the concerns of abutters about drainage of soils and any negative 
impact to abutters.  Mr. Gove explained the flow of water from the development goes to the south.  
Water doesn’t flow uphill.  There are detention basins proposed at the lower areas and water will flow 
away from abutting properties.  Clay soils in the abutters’ properties create water problems because 
they don’t drain well and problems with footing drains. 
 
Criteria #4 concerns design/construction/maintenance.  Mr. Gove noted the applicant did a good job to 
avoid wetland impact and with the proposal to manage stormwater volume and quality.  Maintenance 
will minimize detrimental impact.  Christian Smith noted the HOA will be responsible for inspections and 
annual reports to DPW if requested.  Mr. Pasay added the plan is designed to use the best suitable 
uplands avoiding a line of swamp white oaks with the greatest benefit and minimum impact. 
 
Criteria #5 concerns hazards to individuals or public, health, safety and welfare due to loss or 
contamination of groundwater.  Mr. Pasay noted the impact is totally unavoidable to get to the uplands 
and impacts the lowest value wetlands and slightly to individual units.  Mr. Gove clarified the criteria is 
meant to address issues IF there is a loss of wetland which causes flooding, as when wetlands are filled 
which is not the case here.  There is no concern with contamination of groundwater as the units are 
residential not industrial or commercial. 
 
Criteria #6 concerns wetland of equal or greater size.  Mr. Pasay noted the Mendez Trust property is 
being conveyed which has higher value.  Mr. Koff agreed. 
 
Criteria #7 concerns temporary disturbance and restoration of vegetation or grade.  Mr. Smith noted the 
disturbed areas will be seeded with a NE Conservation seed mix. 
 
Criteria #8 concerns requirement of state and federal permits being obtained.  Mr. Smith noted he will 
provide a list of those.  Mr. Koff noted the applicant will need to come back to the Commission for 
recommendation of the State permit. 
 
Mr. Mattera noted as far as the CUP goes it fits nicely.  He agrees with minimization and that the 
functions are not heavily affected. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned after reviewing the application and criteria the Conservation Commission 
has no objection to the approval of the conditional use permit as proposed with the condition that if the 
impact increases the Planning Board should seek a revised recommendation from us.  Mr. Guindon 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken Koff – aye, Guindon – aye, Mattera – aye, Madison – 
aye, Campbell – aye and Clement – abstained.  The motion passed 5-0-1. 
 
Mr. Koff reviewed Page 16 concerning the Shoreland CUP within 150’ of the brook, a major tributary 
that feeds to Little River which feeds to the Exeter River.  Mr. Smith displayed the plan.  Mr. Pasay 
pointed out the roadway impacts to access the uplands and entrance with 8,000 SF of permanent 
impact and 4,100 SF of impervious.  Runoff goes to a treatment system outside the protected district a 
minimum of 100’ from the shoreland district. 
 



4 
 

Mr. Koff reviewed the criteria.   First that it not detrimentally affect the surface water quality of the 
adjacent river.  Mr. Gove noted the runoff is controlled.  Water quality is being treated.  Discharge is 
through a thickly wooded area before it gets to the brook.  Mr. Smith addressed the gutter line of the 
roadway curbing and catch basins.  Mr. Koff noted the gravel road exists today and currently there is 
untreated runoff.   Second, there be no discharge of wastewater other than domestic.  There is no 
onside hazardous or toxic waste.  Mr. Smith noted the development will be on municipal water and 
sewer.  All are residential units with no hazardous materials.  Third concerns damage to spawning 
grounds or other wildlife habitat.  Mr. Gove noted vernal pools are on the other side of the site.  The 
area does not have the hydrology for wetland spawning. 
 
Mr. Koff noted the next criteria concerns Regulation 934 of Exeter Shoreline Protection.  Mr. Pasay 
noted there is nothing other than permitted uses. 
 
Mr. Koff noted the next criteria concerns consistency with Regulation 931.  Mr. Pasay noted the 
proposal is designed to preserve the quality of the environment and minimize impact. 
 
Mr. Mattera noted in relation to the brook stormwater management is bring the stormwater out of the 
buffer itself adding a level of protection to the brook.  Mr. Clement agreed it is an improvement to the 
existing gravel road. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Campbell motioned after reviewing the application and criteria the Conservation 
Commission has no objection to the approval of the conditional use permit as proposed.  Mr. Koff 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken Koff – aye, Guindon – aye, Mattera – aye, Madison – 
aye, Campbell – aye, and Clement – aye.  The motion passed unanimously 6-0-0. 
 
Laura Knott asked about third party review.  Mr. Koff noted it was already discussed and the 
Commission needs a material reason to request it and has not been presented with one. 
 
Mr. Pasay asked about continuing the meeting to discuss the easement so that it will not have to be 
renoticed.  Mr. Koff noted the Commission would need to get a legal document to review.  Ms. Murphy 
noted the next meeting already had a full agenda and added that other items such as a baseline, 
discussion and agreement on stewardship fees and survey markers and edge walk be done to ensure the 
boundary markers on plan.  Mr. Campbell added that discussions concerning conditions such as hunting 
need to be finalized.  Ms. Murphy noted the Commission does not require a letter of notification so 
renoticing is not a concern. 
 
Neil Bleicken asked about third party review and believes the map being wrong could affect the whole 
project.  Mr. Koff noted if the Yield Plan was affected it would come back before the Commission.  The 
impacts are not related to what was discussed tonight. 
 
2.  Standard Dredge and Fill Wetland Permit Application by Exeter Station, LLC for 1500 SF of temporary 
impact within the Exeter River at 53 Water Street (former IOKA theater) at Tax Map 72, Lot 34 (Sergio 
Bonilla, Dave Cowie, et al) 
 



5 
 

Mr. Koff read the Notice out loud for 1,500 SF of impact to the Exeter River at 53 Water Street. 
 
Sergio Bonilla of Mission Wetlands presented the plan on behalf of the applicant which is to repair the 
concrete archway piers located in the river on the parcel which is an iconic downtown building.  There 
will be decks to the basement speak easy and first floor commercial space and residents on the second 
floor.  Mr. Bonilla noted the application has been reviewed by the Natural Heritage Bureau, NOAA, Fish 
& Game, the Army Corp and is on the agenda for review by the River Advisory Committee on the 25th.  
PVC boxes will hold river stone and there will be temporary sediment bags and settlement bladders.  
Impact would be foot traffic. 
 
Mr. Campbell asked about the footprint and Mr. Bonilla noted the property line within the river shown 
on the plan.  Mr. Koff asked about the Planning Board and Site Plan Review.  Mr. Campbell asked about 
whether the development would be enlarged and Mr. Bonilla noted it would be in the same spot and 
dimensions. 
 
Mr. Campbell asked about the decks and Mr. Clement asked how far they will extend over the river.  Mr. 
Cowie noted they are within the footprint of the building.  The area is dry in the summer and wet in the 
winter with some flow. 
 
Mr. Clement asked how high off the surface of the water the decks would be.  Mr. Bonilla referenced 
Sheet 3.  Mr. Clement referenced the elevations before the dam.  
 
Mr. Campbell asked if the decks would be cantilevered and Mr. Bonilla noted they would and that a 
variance was obtained. 
 
Mr. Clement asked if the basement deck was beyond the archway and Mr. Bonilla noted it was within. 
 
Christina O’Brian from Market Square Architects shared the drawing. 
 
Mr. Koff asked if the deck is being constructed while the coffer dams are in place. 
 
Mr. Koff noted the upper decks do not require a wetland permit. 
 
Mr. Clement asked bout vegetation and loss of light transmission which is detrimental to aquatics.  Mr. 
Bonilla noted the area is riverbed stone with one shrub.  Mr. Clement asked about impact on fish during 
flows and Mr. Bonilla noted Fish & Game will weigh it on that. 
 
Ms. Murphy asked about the tidal marsh influence and noted the Coastal Project Worksheet is not in the 
packet.  Mr. Bonilla noted he will keep the Town apprised of discussions with Army Corp. 
 
Mr. Bonilla noted the project would be done in the summer in a three-week window.  Mr. Koff noted 
there is usually no flow in the summer especially during the drought.  Mr. Clement noted DES will 
determine when the work can be done. 
 



6 
 

Mr. Koff asked about the elevation of the lower deck and whether it could be raised any and Mr. 
Clement noted if it were raised any it would go up under the arches. 
 
Mr. Campbell asked the purpose of the deck and Mr. Clement noted it was for the restaurant. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned after reviewing the application and criteria the Conservation Commission 
has no objection to the application as proposed.  Mr. Campbell seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Guindon expressed concerns with the elevation of the lower deck. 
 
A roll call vote was taken Koff – aye, Guindon – aye, Mattera – aye, Madison – aye, Campbell – aye and 
Clement – nay.  The motion passed 5-1-0. 
 
Mr. Clement noted the basement deck was a concern for him. 
 
3.  Todd Johnson Ash Tree Study on Emerald Ash Borer Defense Research Request for a portion of the 
town-owned lands within the Little River Conservation Area 
 
Mr. Koff noted the proposal is for a three-year USDA funded project. 
 
Mr. Johnson noted the project concerns research of the Emerald Ash Borer on the Ash trees.  The 
smaller trees appear to be more resistant than the larger trees.  Once the pests are detected the trees 
die rapidly. 
 
The Commission reviewed the proposed location ½ mile within the entry.  Ms. Murphy pointed to the 
project area on the map in relation to the gas line south of Continental Drive. 
 
Mr. Johnson noted 68 White Ash trees would be artificially infested then cut down.  They are not 
bringing in an insect that is not already there and at this stage the insect which takes a year to develop 
would not accidentally escape.  The trees would be taken down and the bark scraped.  Biological control 
wasps would be released.  The largest tree is 16 cm.  The trail would be watched on both ends when the 
trees are fell. 
 
Mr. Guindon noted he was excited to see the area used for research and is in support. 
 
Mr. Madison asked about posting signage during the project and Mr. Johnson posted a copy of the 
laminated signs with QR codes for UNH. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Guindon motioned after reviewing the proposal and find the activity to be in compliance 
with the terms of the deed as proposed.   Mr. Campbell seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken 
Koff – aye, Guindon – aye, Mattera – aye, Madison – aye, Campbell – aye and Clement – aye.  The 
motion passed unanimously 6-0-0. 
 



7 
 

4.  Andrew Butler Furbearer Study Technique Evaluation Research Request for Oaklands Town Forest, 
Colcord Pond and Stone/Leighton 
 
Ms. Murphy noted the project is for three game cameras and to evaluate wildlife tracks.  Jay Caswell is 
not her.  The project is a non-invasive study on town-owned property.  Mr. Koff noted it was not unlike 
the cameras already out there. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned after reviewing the proposal and find the activity to be in compliance with 
the terms of the deeds as proposed.  Mr. Mattera seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken Koff – 
aye, Guindon – aye, Mattera – aye, Madison – aye, Campbell – aye and Clement – aye.  With all in favor 
the motion passed unanimously 6-0-0. 
 
5.  Committee Reports 
 
 a.  Tree Committee Update 

Ms. Murphy noted the Tree Committee is working on an ordinance. 

6.  Approval of Minutes:  

      March 9, 2021 Meeting 

      April 13, 2021 Meeting 

7.  Correspondence 

     a.  Piscassic River WMA Timber Harvest Notice 

     b.  NHDOT Rocky Hill Brook Culvert Repair Notice 

8.  Other Business 

Mr. Guindon asked about the materials left at the Newfields Road entrance, at the intersection, and 
whether they could be stored further off the trail.  Ms. Murphy will follow-up. 

Mr. Koff noted the Alewife are running and encouraged people to get photos. 

9.  Next Meeting:  Date Scheduled (6/8/21), Submission Deadline (5/28/21) 

Adjournment 
 
MOTION:   Mr. Koff moved to adjourn at 10:15 PM.   Mr. Campbell seconded the motion.  A roll call vote 
was taken Koff – aye, Mattera – aye, Campbell – aye, Guindon – aye, and Madison – aye.  With all in 
favor the motion passed unanimously 5-0-0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Daniel Hoijer, Recording Secretary 


	Phase_IA_Cost_Proposal_Preservation Company_Raynes Barn_2021.pdf
	Phase IA

	June Meeting Memo.pdf
	Date:  June 4th, 2021


	Project Name: Wiggin/Raynes Barn Rehabilitation
	City/Town: Exeter
	LCHIP Request: LCHIP Request(50% or less of total Income)
	Cash Source LCHIP: 100000
	Not Applicable: Not Applicable
	Total LCHIP Grant Request: 100000
	LCHIP Award Date (estimated): November 2021
	Funding Source 3: Exeter Warrant Article
	Cash Source 3: 100000
	Non-Cash Source 3: 
	Total Source 3: 100000
	Est: 
	 date to be secured Funding source 3: March 2022
	 date to be secured Funding source 4: June 2021
	 date to be secured Funding source 5: Summer, 2021
	 date to be secured Funding source 6: Fall 2021
	 date to be secured Funding source 7: Summer 2021
	 date to be secured Funding source 8: 
	 date to be secured Funding source 9: 

	Funding Source 4: Conservation Fund
	Cash Source 4: 50000
	Non-Cash Source 4: 
	Total Source 4: 50000
	Funding Source 5: Phase I Archeological
	Cash Source 5: 1900
	Non-Cash Source 5: 
	Total Source 5: 1900
	Funding Source 6: Site/ADA Access Improvments
	Cash Source 6: 3800
	Non-Cash Source 6: 
	Total Source 6: 3800
	Funding Source 7: 2021 Bedard CAR
	Cash Source 7: 2500
	Non-Cash Source 7: 
	Total Source 7: 2500
	Funding Source 8: 
	Cash Source 8: 
	Non-Cash Source 8: 
	Total Source 8: 0
	Funding Source 9: 
	Cash Source 9: 
	Non-Cash Source 9: 
	Total Source 9: 0
	Total of all sources of cash: 258200
	Total of all sources of non-cash: 0
	Total Funding Identified: 258200
	Expense Line 1: 
	0: Exterior
	1: Interior Lower Level
	2: Interior Main Level
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: Contingency 10%
	8: General Conditions 10%

	Cash Expense Line 1: 
	0: 147300
	1: 32700
	2: 28000
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 20100
	8: 20100

	Non-cash Expense line 1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 

	Total Expenses line 1: 
	0: 147300
	1: 32700
	2: 28000
	3: 0
	4: 0
	5: 0
	6: 0
	7: 20100
	8: 20100

	Date 1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 

	Total Cash Expenses: 248200
	Total Non-Cash Expenses: 0
	Total Expenses: 248200
	Admin Expense 1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	Admin cash exp 1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	Admin non-cash exp 1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	Admin tot exp 1: 
	0: 0

	Admin date 1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	Admin Tot exp 1: 
	1: 0
	2: 0



